LANCASTER

CITY COUNCIL

Promoting City, Coast & Countryside

Committee:  AUDIT COMMITTEE

Date: WEDNESDAY, 28 JUNE 2017
Venue: LANCASTER TOWN HALL
Time: 6.10 P.M.

AGENDA

1. Apologies for Absence
2. Appointment of Vice-Chairman

To appoint a Vice-Chairman for the 2017/18 municipal year (The Vice Chairman must not
be a member of Cabinet or Overview and Scrutiny).

3. Minutes
Minutes of meeting held on 18" January 2017 (previously circulated).
4, Items of urgent business authorised by the Chairman

5. Declarations of Interest

To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this Agenda.

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the Localism Act 2011, they are required
to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests which have not already been declared in
the Council’s Register of Interests. (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting).

Whilst not a legal requirement, in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 9 and in the
interests of clarity and transparency, Members should declare any disclosable pecuniary
interests which they have already declared in the Register, at this point in the meeting.

In accordance with Part B Section 2 of the Code Of Conduct, Members are required to
declare the existence and nature of any other interests as defined in paragraphs 8(1) or
9(2) of the Code of Conduct.

6. External Audit Plan 2016/17 (Pages 1 - 16)
Report of KPMG LLP.
7. External Audit Fee 2017/18 (Pages 17 - 24)

Report of KPMG LLP.



10.

11.

Internal Audit Management - Collaboration with Wyre Borough Council (Pages 25 -
28)

Report of the Chief Officer (Resources).

Annual Review of Internal Audit's Compliance with Professional Standards (Pages
29 - 36)

Report of the Internal Audit and Assurance Manager.

Internal Audit Annual Report and Assurance Statement 2016/17 (Pages 37 - 45)
Report if the Internal Audit and Assurance Manager.

Internal Audit Strategy and Risk Based Plan 2017/18 (Pages 46 - 51)

Report of the Internal Audit and Assurance Manager.

ADMINISTRATIVE ARRANGEMENTS

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Membership

Councillors Abbott Bryning (Chairman), Nathan Burns, Colin Hartley, Elizabeth Scott,
Malcolm Thomas, David Whitaker and Nicholas Wilkinson

Substitute Membership

Councillors Stuart Bateson (Substitute), Tim Hamilton-Cox (Substitute), Brendan Hughes
(Substitute), Roger Sherlock (Substitute) and Peter Williamson (Substitute)

Queries regarding this Agenda

Please contact Sarah Moorghen, Democratic Services - telephone 01524 582132, or
email smoorghen@Iancaster.gov.uk.

Changes to Membership, substitutions or apologies

Please contact Democratic Support, telephone 582170, or alternatively emalil
democraticsupport@Ilancaster.gov.uk.

SUSAN PARSONAGE,
CHIEF EXECUTIVE,
TOWN HALL,
DALTON SQUARE,
LANCASTER, LA1 1PJ

Published on 20" June, 2017.


mailto:democraticsupport@lancaster.gov.uk

d|

Lancaster City Council

June 2017



Headlines

Financial Statement Audit Value for Money Arrangements work

There are no significant changes to the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting Our risk assessment is ongoing and we will report VFM significant risks during our audit
in 2016/17, which provides stability in terms of the accounting standards the Authority

need to comply with. See pages 7 to 10 for more details.

Materiality

Materiality for planning purposes has been based on last year's expenditure and set
at £3 million.

We are obliged to report uncorrected omissions or misstatements other than those
which are ‘clearly trivial’ to those charged with governance and this has been set
at £150,000.

Our team is:

= Tim Cutler- Director
Significant risks = Chris Paisley — Audit Manager

Those risks requiring specific audit attention and procedures to address the = Forget Chasakara — Assistant Manager

likelihood of a material financial statement error have been identified as: More details are on page 13.

= Significant changes in the pension liability due to LGPS Triennial Valuation; and Our work will be completed in four phases from March to September and our key

= Valuation of PPE. deliverables are this Audit Plan and a Report to those charged with Governance as
outlined on page 12.
Other areas of audit focus Our fee for the audit is £58,388 (£58,388 in 2015/16) see page 11.

Those risks with less likelihood of giving rise to a material error but which are
nevertheless worthy of audit understanding have been identified as:

= Disclosure around retrospective restatement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure (CIES) , Movement in Reserves Statement (MiRS) and Expenditure
and Funding Analysis (EFA) note from 1 April 2016; and

= Recognition of pay and non-pay expenditure.

See pages 3to 6 for more details.

m © 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (‘KPMG International”), a 1
Swiss entity. All rights reserved

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential



ntroduction

Background and Statutory responsibilities

This document supplements our Audit Fee Letter 2016/17 presented to you in June 2016,
which also sets out details of our appointment by Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd
(PSAA).

Our statutory responsibilities and powers are set out in the Local Audit and Accountability
Act 2014 and the National Audit Office’s Code of Audit Practice.

Our audit has two key objectives, requiring us to audit/review and report on your:

— Financial statements (including the Annual Governance Statement): Providing an
opinion on your accounts; and

— Use of resources: Concluding on the arrangements in place for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in your use of resources (the value for money
conclusion).

The audit planning process and risk assessment is an on-going process and the
assessment and fees in this plan will be kept under review and updated if necessary.

Acknowledgements

We would like to take this opportunity to thank officers and Members for their continuing
help and co-operation throughout our audit work.

Financial Statements Audit

Our financial statements audit work follows a four stage audit process which is identified
below. Appendix 1 provides more detail on the activities that this includes. This report
concentrates on the Financial Statements Audit Planning stage of the Financial
Statements Audit.

Financial Substantive

Procedures ComiElEmem

Statements Audit
Planning

Value for Money Arrangements Work

Our Value for Money (VFM) Arrangements Work follows a five stage process which is
identified below. Page 8 provides more detail on the activities that this includes. This report
concentrates on explaining the VFM approach for the 2016/17.

Identification
of significant
VFM risks

VFEM
audit work

Risk
Assessment

Reporting

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential



-nancial Statements audit planning

Financial Statements Audit Planning

Our planning work took place during December 2016 to February 2017. This involved the
following key aspects:

— Risk assessment;

— Determining our materiality level; and

— Issuing this audit plan to communicate our audit strategy.
Risk assessment

Professional standards require us to consider two standard risks for all organisations. We
are not elaborating on these standard risks in this plan but consider them as a matter of
course in our audit and will include any findings arising from our work in our

ISA 260 Report.

— Management override of controls — Management is typically in a powerful position to
perpetrate fraud owing to its ability to manipulate accounting records and prepare
fraudulent financial statements by overriding controls that otherwise appear to be
operating effectively. Our audit methodology incorporates the risk of management
override as a default significant risk. In line with our methodology, we carry out
appropriate controls testing and substantive procedures, including over journal
entries, accounting estimates and significant transactions that are outside the normal
course of business, or are otherwise unusual.

— Fraudulent revenue recognition — We do not consider this to be a significant risk for
local authorities as there are limited incentives and opportunities to manipulate the
way income is recognised. We therefore rebut this risk and do not incorporate
specific work into our audit plan in this area over and above our standard fraud
procedures.

The diagram opposite identifies, significant risks and other areas of audit focus, which we
expand on overleaf. The diagram also identifies a range of other areas considered by our
audit approach.

KPMG

Swiss entity. All rights reserved

Remuneration

disclosures .
Disclosures

associated with
retrospective
restatement of
CIES, EFA and
MiRS

Revenue Pension
recognition assets
Management

override of
controls

Financial
Instruments
disclosures

Compliance to
the Code’s
disclosure

requirements

Pension
liability

assumptions NNDR
Provisions
Bad debt Key financial
Pay and non-

pay
Accounting
for leases

expenditure

Keys: ® Significantrisk ~ ®  Other area of audit focus ©  Example other areas considered by our approach

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (‘KPMG International”), a 3

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential



Financial Statements audit planning (Cont,) =

Significant Audit Risks

Those risks requiring specific audit attention and procedures to address the likelihood of a material financial statement error.

Risk: Significant changes in the pension liability due to LGPS Triennial Valuation

During the year, the Local Government Pension Scheme for Lancaster City Council
(the Pension Fund) has undergone a triennial valuation with an effective date of 31
March 2016 in line with the Local Government Pension Scheme (Administration)
Regulations 2013. The Authority’s share of pensions assets and liabilities is determined
in detail, and a large volume of data is provided to the actuary in order to carry out this
triennial valuation.

The pension liability numbers to be included in the financial statements for 2016/17 will
be based on the output of the triennial valuation rolled forward to 31 March 2017. For
2017/18 and 2018/19 the actuary will then roll forward the valuation for accounting
purposes based on more limited data.

There is a risk that the data provided to the actuary for the valuation exercise is
inaccurate and that these inaccuracies affect the actuarial figures in the accounts. Most
of the data is provided to the actuary by Lancashire County Council, who administer the
Pension Fund.

Approach: As part of our audit, we will agree any data provided by the Authority to the
actuary, back to the relevant systems and reports from which it was derived, in addition
to checking the accuracy of this data.

We will also liaise with Grant Thornton, who are the auditors of the Pension Fund
administering authority, where this data was provided by the Pension Fund on the
Authority’s behalf, to check the completeness and accuracy such data.

Risk : Valuation of Property, Plant and Equipment

The Authority undertakes a rolling revaluation of its Property, Plant and Equipment
(PPE) assets. Assets are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure that their carrying
amount is not materially different from their current net book value; as a minimum, all
assets are revalued at least every five years.

The valuation of these assets is impacted significantly by the assumptions adopted by
the Authority’s expert valuation specialist. Further, Authorities are required to consider
annually the possibility of any impairment to its existing estate. The asset valuation and
impairment review processes are both estimates and therefore present a higher level of
risk to the audit.

Approach: We will review the valuation basis adopted and consider its
appropriateness. We will undertake appropriate work to understand the basis upon
which any impairments to land and buildings have been calculated.

We will test the associated assumptions. We will re-perform any calculations of
movement in market value indices relied upon by the Authority, and confirm the data
used by valuer, to the appropriate source data.

We will assess the independence and objectivity of the surveyors and the terms under
which they were engaged by management.

G abed

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential



Financial Statements audit planning (Cont,)

Other areas of audit focus

Those risks with less likelihood of giving rise to a material error but which are nevertheless worthy of audit understanding.

Disclosures associated with retrospective restatement of CIES, EFA and MiRS

During past years, CIPFA has been working with stakeholders to develop better accountability through
the financial statements as part of its ‘telling the whole story’ project. The key objective of this project
was to make Local Government accounts more understandable and transparent to the reader in terms
of how the Councils are funded and how they use the funding to serve the local population. Outcome of
this project resulted in two main changes in respect of the 2016-17 Local Government Accounting Code
(Code) as follows:

Allowing local authorities to report on the same basis as they are organised by removing the
requirement for the Service Reporting Code of Practice (SeRCOP) to be applied to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES); and

Introducing an Expenditure and Funding Analysis (EFA) which provides a direct reconciliation
between the way local authorities are funded and prepare their budget and the CIES. This analysis
is supported by a streamlined Movement in Reserves Statement (MIRS) and replaces the current
segmental reporting note

As a result of these changes , retrospective restatement of CIES (cost of services) , EFA and MIiRS is
required from 1 April 2016 in the Statement of Accounts.

New disclosure requirements and restatement of accounts require compliance with relevant guidance
and correct application of applicable Accounting Standards .

Though less likely to give rise to a material error in the financial statements , this is an important
material disclosure change in this year's accounts , worthy of audit understanding.

Approach :

As part of our audit ;

We will assess how the Authority has actioned the revised disclosure requirements for the CIES,
MiRS and the new EFA statement as required by the Code ; and

We will check the restated numbers and associated disclosures for accuracy ,correct presentation
and compliance with applicable Accounting Standards and Code guidance

Pay and non-pay expenditure

Staff costs represent a significant proportion of the Authority’s
expenditure base. The disaggregated nature of pay expenditure
transactions and the number of changes to Payroll data that take
place during the year indicates that staff costs should be given
specific audit focus.

Non-pay expenditure is an area of audit focus because it is highly
material to the users of the Accounts, and contains areas of
management judgement in respect of, for example, accrued
expenditure.

Approach:

In respect of pay costs, we will test the controls around changes to
Payroll data, which impact directly on staff costs recognised in the
financial statements, to confirm they have been operating
effectively during 2016/17.

For non-pay expenditure, we will perform testing over controls in
place around the approval of non-pay expenditure. We will perform
substantive testing of non-pay expenditure transactions in 2016/17,
as well as conducting a high-level analytical review of non-pay
expenditure by category.

KPMG

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

g abed



Financlal Statements audit pianning (cont) =0

Materiality

We are required to plan our audit to determine with reasonable confidence whether or not
the financial statements are free from material misstatement. An omission or misstatement
is regarded as material if it would reasonably influence the user of financial statements.
This therefore involves an assessment of the qualitative and quantitative nature of
omissions and misstatements.

Generally, we would not consider differences in opinion in respect of areas of judgement
to represent ‘misstatements’ unless the application of that judgement results in a financial
amount falling outside of a range which we consider to be acceptable.

Materiality for planning purposes has been set at £3 million, which equates to 1.85 percent
of total expenditure in 2015/16. We design our procedures to detect errors in specific
accounts at a lower level of precision of £2.25 million.

Reporting to the Audit Committee

Whilst our audit procedures are designed to identify misstatements which are material to
our opinion on the financial statements as a whole, we nevertheless report to the Audit
Committee any unadjusted misstatements of lesser amounts to the extent that these are
identified by our audit work.

Materiality for the Authority
based on prior year gross

£m .
- expenditure
200
Procedures
150 — £2,250,000 Qes_ig_ned to detect
individual errors
100
£161.4m Individual errors,
where identified,
50 - reported to
£150,000 Audit Committee
0

2016/17

Under ISA 260(UK&I) ‘Communication with those charged with governance’, we are obliged to
report uncorrected omissions or misstatements other than those which are ‘clearly trivial’ to
those charged with governance. ISA 260 (UK&I) defines ‘clearly trivial’ as matters that are
clearly inconsequential, whether taken individually or in aggregate and whether judged by any
quantitative or qualitative criteria.

In the context of the Authority, we propose that an individual difference could normally be
considered to be clearly trivial if it is less than £150,000.

If management have corrected material misstatements identified during the course of the audit,
we will consider whether those corrections should be communicated to the Audit Committee to
assist it in fulfilling its governance responsibilities.

We will report the following matters in our Report to those charged with Governance:

Any deficiencies in the system of internal controls or instances of fraud which the subsidiary
auditors identify; and

Any limitations on the audit, for example, where the our access to information may have
been restricted.

) abed

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential



\Vialue Tor money arrangements Work

Background to approach to VFM work

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 requires auditors of local government bodies to be satisfied that the authority ‘has made proper arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources’.

This is supported by the Code of Audit Practice, published by the NAO in April 2015, which requires auditors to ‘take into account their knowledge of the relevant local sector as a whole,
and the audited body specifically, to identify any risks that, in the auditor’'s judgement, have the potential to cause the auditor to reach an inappropriate conclusion on the audited body’s

arrangements.’

The VFM approach is fundamentally unchanged from that adopted in 2015/16 and the process is shown in the diagram below. The diagram overleaf shows the details of
the criteria for our VFM work.

VFM audit risk assessment MO <RSI

Assessment of work by other review

Identification of :
agencies

significant VFM risks (if

any) Conclude on

arrangements to
secure VFM

Specific local risk based work

Financial statements and
other audit work

Continually re-assess potential VFM risks

m © 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (‘KPMG International”), a 7
Swiss entity. All rights reserved

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential



Vialue for money arrangements work (cont)

Overall criterion

In all significant respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took
properly informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and
sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.

Informed
decision
making

Proper arrangements:

- Acting in the public interest, through
demonstrating and applying the principles and
values of sound governance.

- Understanding and using appropriate and
reliable financial and performance information
to support informed decision making and
performance management.

- Reliable and timely financial reporting that
supports the delivery of strategic priorities.

- Managing risks effectively and maintaining a
sound system of internal control.

Sustainable
resource
deployment

Proper arrangements:

- Planning finances effectively to support the
sustainable delivery of strategic priorities and
maintain statutory functions.

- Managing and utilising assets to support the
delivery of strategic priorities.

- Planning, organising and developing the
workforce effectively to deliver strategic
priorities.

Working
with
partners
and third
parties

Proper arrangements:

- Working with third parties effectively to deliver
strategic priorities.

- Commissioning services effectively to support
the delivery of strategic priorities.

- Procuring supplies and services effectively to
support the delivery of strategic priorities.

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a

m Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

6 abed



\Viale for money arrangements work (Cont)

VFM audit stage

VFM audit risk assessment

Linkages with financial

statements and other
audit work

Identification of
significant risks

Audit approach

We consider the relevance and significance of the potential business risks faced by all local authorities, and other risks that apply specifically to the
Authority. These are the significant operational and financial risks in achieving statutory functions and objectives, which are relevant to auditors’
responsibilities under the Code of Audit Practice.

In doing so we consider:

= The Authority’s own assessment of the risks it faces, and its arrangements to manage and address its risks;
= Information from the Public Sector Auditor Appointments Limited VFM profile tool;

= Evidence gained from previous audit work, including the response to that work; and

= The work of other inspectorates and review agencies.

There is a degree of overlap between the work we do as part of the VFM audit and our financial statements audit. For example, our financial
statements audit includes an assessment and testing of the Authority’s organisational control environment, including the Authority’s financial
management and governance arrangements, many aspects of which are relevant to our VFM audit responsibilities.

We have always sought to avoid duplication of audit effort by integrating our financial statements and VFM work, and this will continue. We will
therefore draw upon relevant aspects of our financial statements audit work to inform the VFM audit.

n ARD

The Code identifies a matter as significant ‘if, in the auditor’s professional view, it is reasonable to conclude that the matter would be of interest to the
audited body or the wider public. Significance has both qualitative and quantitative aspects.’

If we identify significant VFM risks, then we will highlight the risk to the Authority and consider the most appropriate audit response in each case,
including:

= Considering the results of work by the Authority, inspectorates and other review agencies; and

= Carrying out local risk-based work to form a view on the adequacy of the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources.

m © 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (‘KPMG International”), a 9
Swiss entity. All rights reserved

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential



\Vialie for money arrangements work (Cont)

VFM audit stage

Reporting

Audit approach

Depending on the nature of the significant VFM risk identified, we may be able to draw on the work of other inspectorates, review agencies and other
relevant bodies to provide us with the necessary evidence to reach our conclusion on the risk.

If such evidence is not available, we will instead need to consider what additional work we will be required to undertake to satisfy ourselves that we
have reasonable evidence to support the conclusion that we will draw. Such work may include:

= Meeting with senior managers across the Authority;
= Review of minutes and internal reports;

= Examination of financial models for reasonableness, using our own experience and benchmarking data from within and without the sector.

At the conclusion of the VFM audit we will consider the results of the work undertaken and assess the assurance obtained against each of the VFM
themes regarding the adequacy of the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources.

If any issues are identified that may be significant to this assessment, and in particular if there are issues that indicate we may need to consider

qualifying our VFM conclusion, we will discuss these with management as soon as possible. Such issues will also be considered more widely as part TJ
of KPMG’s quality control processes, to help ensure the consistency of auditors’ decisions. ,m

®
We have completed our initial VFM risk assessment and have not identified any significant VFM risks. We will update our assessment throughout the | |
year should any issues present themselves and report against these in our ISA260. HEN

We will report on the results of the VFM audit through our ISA 260 Report. This will summarise any specific matters arising, and the basis for our
overall conclusion.

The key output from the work will be the VFM conclusion (i.e. our opinion on the Authority’s arrangements for securing VFM), which forms part of our
audit report.

10

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential



Jther matlers

Whole of government accounts (WGA)

We are required to review your WGA consolidation and undertake the work specified under
the approach that is agreed with HM Treasury and the National Audit Office. Deadlines for
production of the pack and the specified approach for 2016/17 have not yet been
confirmed.

Elector challenge

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 gives electors certain rights. These are:
— The right to inspect the accounts;

— The right to ask the auditor questions about the accounts; and

— The right to object to the accounts.

As a result of these rights, in particular the right to object to the accounts, we may need to
undertake additional work to form our decision on the elector's objection. The additional
work could range from a small piece of work where we interview an officer and review
evidence to form our decision, to a more detailed piece of work, where we have to
interview a range of officers, review significant amounts of evidence and seek legal
representations on the issues raised.

The costs incurred in responding to specific questions or objections raised by electors is
not part of the fee. This work will be charged in accordance with the PSAA's fee scales.

Our audit team

Our audit team will be led by Tim Cutler, who has worked with the Council for a number of
years. We have also refreshed our team by introducing Chris Paisley as your Audit
Manager. Appendix 2 provides more details on specific roles and contact details of the
team.

Reporting and communication

Reporting is a key part of the audit process, not only in communicating the audit findings
for the year, but also in ensuring the audit team are accountable to you in addressing the
issues identified as part of the audit strategy. Throughout the year we will communicate
with you through meetings with the finance team and the Audit Committee. Our
communication outputs are included in Appendix 1.

KPMG

Independence and Objectivity

Auditors are also required to be independent and objective. Appendix 3 provides more
details of our confirmation of independence and objectivity.

Audit fee

Our Audit Fee Letter 2016/17 presented to you in June 2016 first set out our fees for the
2016/17 audit. This letter also sets out our assumptions.

We have not considered it necessary to make any changes to the agreed fees at this
stage.

Our audit fee may be varied later, subject to agreement with PSAA, for changes in the U
Code, specifically this year the changes in relation to the disclosure associated with "
retrospective restatement of CIES, EFA and MiRS. If such a variation is agreed with PSAACD
we will report that to you in the due course

The planned audit fee for 2016/17 is £58,388. This is consistent with the audit scale fee foN
2015/16. Our 2015/16 fee doesn't currently include any additional fees in respect of an
elector challenge to the 2015/16 accounts, which was concluded in May 2017. KPMG is in
the process of reviewing the additional time required to respond to this elector challenge,

and the appropriate additional fee, which will be agreed with the Chief Officer (Resources)
before being submitted to PSAA for approval.

Our audit fee includes our work on the VFM conclusion and our audit of the Authority’s
financial statements.

11

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential



Appendix 1: Key elements of our financial Statements audit approach

Communication

z
S
L
o
=
=
=)
<

Audit strategy
and plan l Report Letter

Continuous communication involving regular meetings between Audit Committee, Senior Management and audit team

ISA 260 (UK&I) Annual Audit

Initial planning
meetings and
risk assessment

KPMG

Year end audit of !
financial S|gr_1
statements and audit

annual report opinion

Substantive testing Completion

Plan substantive procedures = Perform completion

ENABLED

AUDIT
METHODOLOGY

Driving more value from the audit through data and
analytics

Technology is embedded throughout our audit approach
to deliver a high quality audit opinion. Use of Data and

Analytics (D&A) to analyse large populations of ;)U
transactions in order to identify key areas for our audit
focus is just one element. We strive to deliver new (o)

quality insight into your operations that enhances our ~ _y
and your preparedness and improves your collective w

By Sl E e procedures ‘business intelligence.’ Data and Analytics allows us to:
procedures = Perform overall — Obtain greater understanding of your processes, to
. . L . evaluation automatically extract control configurations and to
Consider if audit evidence is o obtain higher levels assurance.
sufficient and appropriate = Form an audit opinion .
— Focus manual procedures on key areas of risk and
= Audit Committee on transactional exceptions.
reporting — Identify data patterns and the root cause of issues to
increase forward-looking insight.
We anticipate using data and analytics in our work
around key areas such as journals. We also expect to
provide insights from our analysis of these tranches of
data in our reporting to add further value from our audit.
© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (‘KPMG International”), a 12

Swiss entity. All rights reserved

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential



Appendix Z: Audl team

Your audit team has been drawn from our specialist public sector assurance department. Our audit team will be led by Tim Cutler, who has worked with the Council for a
number of years. We have also refreshed our team by introducing Chris Paisley as your Audit Manager.

Position

Tim Cutler
Partner

0161 246 4774
tim.cutler@kpmg.co.uk

Position

Tim Cutler INET [

Partner

Position

‘My role is to lead our team and ensure the delivery
of a high quality, valued added external audit
opinion.

| will be the main point of contact for the Audit
Committee, Chief Executive and Chief Officer
(Resources).’

Chris Paisley

Manager
0161 246 4934
christopher.paisley@kpmg.co.uk

Forget Chasakara
Assistant Manager

‘[ will be responsible for the on-site delivery of our
work and will supervise the work of our audit

Chris Paisley
Manager

‘| provide quality assurance for the audit work
and specifically any technical accounting and risk
areas.

o
I will work closely with Tim to ensure we add g

value. D
-

I will liaise with the Financial Services Manager
and other Chief Officers.’

assistants.’
Forget Chasakara
Assistant Manager
07917 780 402
forget.chasakara@kpmg.co.uk
© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (‘KPMG International”), a 13

KPMG

Swiss entity. All rights reserved

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential



Appendix 3 Indiependence and oojectivity requrements

Independence and objectivity

Professional standards require auditors to communicate to those charged with governance,
at least annually, all relationships that may bear on the firm’s independence and the
objectivity of the audit engagement partner and audit staff. The standards also place
requirements on auditors in relation to integrity, objectivity and independence.

The standards define ‘those charged with governance’ as ‘those persons entrusted with the
supervision, control and direction of an entity’. In your case this is the Audit Committee.

KPMG LLP is committed to being and being seen to be independent. APB Ethical
Standards require us to communicate to you in writing all significant facts and matters,
including those related to the provision of non-audit services and the safeguards put in
place, in our professional judgement, may reasonably be thought to bear on KPMG LLP’s
independence and the objectivity of the Engagement Lead and the audit team.

Further to this auditors are required by the National Audit Office’s Code of Audit Practice to:
— Carry out their work with integrity, independence and objectivity;

— Be transparent and report publicly as required;

— Be professional and proportional in conducting work;

— Be mindful of the activities of inspectorates to prevent duplication;

— Take a constructive and positive approach to their work;

— Comply with data statutory and other relevant requirements relating to the security,
transfer, holding, disclosure and disposal of information.

PSAA’s Terms of Appointment includes several references to arrangements designed to
support and reinforce the requirements relating to independence, which auditors must
comply with. These are as follows:

— Auditors and senior members of their staff who are directly involved in the
management, supervision or delivery of PSAA audit work should not take part in
political activity.

KPMG

No member or employee of the firm should accept or hold an appointment as a
member of an audited body whose auditor is, or is proposed to be, from the same firm.
In addition, no member or employee of the firm should accept or hold such
appointments at related bodies, such as those linked to the audited body through a
strategic partnership.

Audit staff are expected not to accept appointments as Governors at certain types of
schools within the local authority.

Auditors and their staff should not be employed in any capacity (whether paid or
unpaid) by an audited body or other organisation providing services to an audited body
whilst being employed by the firm.

Auditors appointed by the PSAA should not accept engagements which involve
commenting on the performance of other PSAA auditors on PSAA work without first
consulting PSAA.

Auditors are expected to comply with the Terms of Appointment policy for the
Engagement Lead to be changed on a periodic basis.

Audit suppliers are required to obtain the PSAA’s written approval prior to changing an
Engagement Lead in respect of each audited body.

Certain other staff changes or appointments require positive action to be taken by
Firms as set out in the Terms of Appointment.

G| abed

Confirmation statement

We confirm that as of June 2017 in our professional judgement, KPMG LLP is independent
within the meaning of regulatory and professional requirements and the objectivity of the
Engagement Lead and audit team is not impaired.

14

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential



Wlin|3|o

Andrew.Sayers@kpmg.co.uk.

generalenquiries@psaa.co.uk

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

9l abed


https://www.linkedin.com/company/kpmg-advisory
https://www.linkedin.com/company/kpmg-advisory
https://plus.google.com/111087034030305010189
https://plus.google.com/111087034030305010189
https://twitter.com/kpmguk
https://twitter.com/kpmguk
https://www.youtube.com/user/KPMGUK
https://www.youtube.com/user/KPMGUK
mailto:Andrew.Sayers@kpmg.co.uk
mailto:generalenquiries@psaa.co.uk

Page 17 Agenda Iltem 7

KPMG LLP Tel +44 (0) 161 246 4000
1 St Peter's Square Fax +44 (0) 161 246 4040
Manchester
United Kingdom
M2 3AE
Private & confidential
Nadine Muschamp
Head of Financial Services
Lancaster City Council ourref 1718/AFL/LCC
Town Hall
Dalton Square Contact Christopher Paisley
Lancaster 0161 246 4934
LAL1 1PJ
21 April 2017

Dear Ms Muschamp

Annual audit fee 2017/18

I am writing to confirm the audit work and fee that we propose for the 2017/18 financial
year at Lancaster City Council. Our proposals are based on the risk-based approach to
audit planning as set out in the Code of Audit Practice and Public Sector Audit
Appointments Ltd’s (PSAA’s) published work programme and fee scales.

Planned audit fee

The planned audit and certification fees for 2017/18 are shown below, along with a
comparison to the prior year’s fee. All fees are exclusive of VAT.

Audit area Planned fee Planned fee

2017/18 2016/17
Audit fee — Lancaster City Council £58,388 £58,388
Certification of housing benefit grant claim TBC £7,740

PSAA has set the 2017/18 scale fees at the same level as for 2015/16 and 2016/17,
thereby preserving the 25 per cent reductions in cash terms that were applied to those
years which in turn were in addition to the savings of up to 40 per cent in scale audit
fees and certification fees in 2012/13. This equates to a real terms saving of 61 per
cent over this period. The 2017/18 planned fee is in line with the scale fee.

The PSAA has yet to publish its scale fee for the Certification of housing benefit grant
claim. We will communicate this to you as soon as the PSAA publishes this information.

Registered in England No OC301540

KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the Registered office: 15 Canada Square, London, E14 5GL
KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG For full details of our professional regulation please refer to
International Cooperative (‘KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. ‘Regulatory Information’ under ‘About/About KPMG' at www.kpmg.com/uk

Document Classification - KPMG Confidential



Page 18

KPMG LLP
Annual audit fee 2017/18
21 April 2017

As we have not yet completed our audit for 2016/17 the audit planning process for
2017/18, including the risk assessment, will continue as the year progresses and fees
will be reviewed and updated as necessary. We will naturally keep you informed.

Redistribution of Audit Commission surplus

PSAA plans, during the course of 2017/18, to make a distribution of surplus funds to
principal local government and police bodies. The distribution is made possible by the
transfer of an element of the Audit Commission's retained earnings prior to its closure
in March 2015 and by PSAA continuing to generate surplus funds and make further
efficiencies since its establishment.

This distribution will be made directly by PSAA and not via KPMG. Based on current
information, PSAA anticipates that the amount of the redistribution is likely to be in the
order of 15% of the scale fee.

Factors affecting audit work for 2017/18

We plan and deliver our work to fulfil our responsibilities under the Code of Audit
Practice (the Code) issued by the National Audit Office (NAO). Under the Code, we
tailor our work to reflect local circumstances and our assessment of audit risk. We do
this by assessing the significant financial and operational risks facing an audited body,
and the arrangements it has put in place to manage those risks, as well as considering
any changes affecting our audit responsibilities or financial reporting standards.

Under the Code, we have a responsibility to consider an audited body’s arrangements
to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources and to do this
we will undertake appropriate value for money (VFM) audit work. The 2017/18 fees
have been set on the basis that the NAO’s Code and supporting guidance does not
change the level of work required on the VFM audit. Should this not be the case, or if
new or increased significant VFM audit risks arise that require further audit work,
additional fees will be necessary over and above the scale fee. Any such additional
fees will be subject to approval through PSAA’s fee variation process.

Certification work

As well as our work under the Code, we will certify the 2017/18 claim for housing
benefit subsidy to the Department for Work & Pensions (DWP).

The 2017/18 subsidy claim will be the final year for which PSAA will make
arrangements for auditors to undertake housing benefit subsidy certification work. After
the end of the transitional arrangements and the current audit contracts, PSAA has no
legal power or remit in relation to assurance on claims or returns. The DWP is
developing its own assurance arrangements from 2018/19 and has issued further

1718/AFL/LCC 2

Document Classification - KPMG Confidential



Page 19

KPMG LLP
Annual audit fee 2017/18
21 April 2017

guidance directly to local authorities. We will liaise with the Council over the future
approach to this work as details emerge.

There are no longer any other claims or returns that we are required to certify under the
PSAA audit contract. Assurance arrangements for other schemes are a matter for the
relevant grant-paying body, and may be the subject of separate fees and tri-partite
arrangements between the grant-paying body, the audited body, and the auditor. We
would be happy to discuss any such certification needs with you.

Assumptions

The indicative fees are based on a number of assumptions, including that you will
provide us with complete and materially accurate financial statements with good quality
supporting working papers, within agreed timeframes. It is imperative that you achieve
this. If this is not the case and we have to complete more work than was envisaged, we
will need to charge additional fees for this work. Our assumptions are set out in more
detail in Appendix 1 to this letter.

In setting the fee at this level, we have assumed that the general level of risk in relation
to the audit of the financial statements and certification work is not significantly different
from that identified for the current year’'s audit. A more detailed audit plan will be issued
early next year. This will detail the risks identified, planned audit procedures and (if
required) any changes in fee. If we need to make any significant amendments to the
audit fee during the course of the audit, we will first discuss this with you and then
prepare a report for the Audit Committee, outlining the reasons why the fee needs to
change.

We expect to issue a humber of reports relating to our work over the course of the
audit. These are listed at Appendix 2. A statement of our independence is included at
Appendix 3.

The proposed fee excludes any additional work we may agree to undertake at the
request of Lancaster City Council. Any such piece of work will be separately discussed
and a detailed project specification agreed with you.

Beyond 2017/18

The 2017/18 audit will be the last under the current transitional arrangements whereby
PSAA is responsible for managing the audit contracts novated to it from the Audit
Commission upon its closure in March 2015.

For audits of the accounts from 2018/19, the provisions of the Local Audit &
Accountability Act 2014 in relation to local appointment of auditors take effect. The
Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government has specified PSAA as the

1718/AFL/LCC 3

Document Classification - KPMG Confidential



Page 20
__hﬁl

KPMG LLP
Annual audit fee 2017/18

21 April 2017

appointing person for principal local government and police bodies. PSAA will therefore
appoint auditors and set scale audit fees for bodies that have opted into its national
scheme.

Our team

The key members of our audit team for the 2017/18 audit are:

Name Role Contact details

Tim Cutler Partner Tim.Cutler@KPMG.co.uk
0161 246 4281

Christopher Paisley Manager Christopher.Paisley@KPMG.co.uk
0161 246 4934

Forget Chasakara Assistant Manager Forget.Chasakara@KPMG.co.uk
07917 780402

Quality of service

We are committed to providing you with a high quality service. If you have any
concerns or are dissatisfied with any part of KPMG’s work, in the first instance you
should contact me and | will try to resolve your complaint. If you are dissatisfied with
your response please contact the national contact partner for all of KPMG’s work under
our contract with PSAA, Andy Sayers (andrew.sayers@kpmg.co.uk). After this, if you
are still dissatisfied with how your complaint has been handled you can access PSAA’s
complaints procedure by emailing generalenquiries@psaa.co.uk, by telephoning 020
7072 7445 or by writing to:

Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited
3rd Floor

Local Government House

Smith Square

London

SW1P 3HZ

Yours sincerely

Tim Cutler
Partner, KPMG LLP

1718/AFL/LCC 4

Document Classification - KPMG Confidential


mailto:andrew.sayers@kpmg.co.uk

Page 21

KPMG LLP
Annual audit fee 2017/18
21 April 2017

Appendix 1 — Audit fee assumptions
In setting the fee, we have assumed that:

the level of risk in relation to the audit of the financial statements is not significantly
different from that identified for 2016/17,

you will inform us of significant developments impacting on our audit work;
internal audit meets the appropriate professional standards;

internal audit undertakes appropriate work on all systems that provide material
figures in the financial statements sufficient that we can place reliance for the
purposes of our audit;

you will identify and implement any changes required under the CIPFA Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting within your 2017/18 financial statements;

your financial statements will be made available for audit in line with the timetable
we agree with you (note that 2017/18 is the first year in which the ‘faster close’
timetable applies whereby the deadline for draft accounts moves to the end of May
and the deadline for publishing audited accounts moves to the end of July);

good quality working papers and records will be provided to support the financial
statements in line with our prepared by client request and by the date we agree with
you;

requested information will be provided within agreed timescales;
prompt responses will be provided to draft reports;

complete and accurate claims and returns are provided for certification, with
supporting working papers, within agreed timeframes; and

additional work will not be required to address questions or objections raised by local
government electors or for special investigations such as those arising from
disclosures under the Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998.

Where these assumptions are not met, we will be required to undertake additional work
and charge an increased audit fee. The fee for the audit will be re-visited when we
issue the detailed audit plan.

Any changes to our audit plan and fee will be agreed with you. Changes may be
required if:

new residual audit risks emerge;
additional work is required by KPMG, PSAA, the NAO or other regulators; or

additional work is required as a result of changes in legislation, professional
standards or as a result of changes in financial reporting.

1718/AFL/LCC 5

Document Classification - KPMG Confidential



Page 22

KPMG

Appendix 2: Planned outputs

KPMG LLP
Annual audit fee 2017/18
21 April 2017

Our reports will be discussed and agreed with the appropriate officers before being

issued to the Audit Committee.

Planned output

Indicative date

financial statements, value for money
conclusion and audit certificate

External audit plan January 2018
Report to those charged with governance July 2018
(ISA260 report)

Auditor's report giving the opinion on the July 2018

Opinion on Whole of Government Accounts
return

September 2018

Annual audit letter

October 2018

Certification of grant claims summary report

November 2018

1718/AFL/LCC

Document Classification - KPMG Confidential



Page 23

KPMG LLP
Annual audit fee 2017/18
21 April 2017

Appendix 3 — Independence & objectivity requirements

Professional standards require auditors to communicate to those charged with
governance, at least annually, all relationships that may bear on the firm’'s
independence and the objectivity of the audit engagement partner and audit staff. The
standards also place requirements on auditors in relation to integrity, objectivity and
independence.

The standards define ‘those charged with governance’ as ‘those persons entrusted with
the supervision, control and direction of an entity’. In your case this is the Audit
Committee.

KPMG LLP is committed to being and being seen to be independent. The APBs Ethical
Standard requires us to communicate to you in writing all significant facts and matters,
including those related to the provision of non-audit services and the safeguards put in
place, in our professional judgement, may reasonably be thought to bear on KPMG
LLP’s independence and the objectivity of the Engagement Lead and the audit team.

Further to this auditors are required by the NAO’s Code of Audit Practice to:

Carry out their work with integrity, independence and objectivity;

Be transparent and report publicly as required;

Be professional and proportional in conducting work;

Be mindful of the activities of inspectorates to prevent duplication;

Take a constructive and positive approach to their work;

Comply with data statutory and other relevant requirements relating to the security,

transfer, holding, disclosure and disposal of information.

PSAA’s Terms of Appointment includes several references to arrangements designed
to support and reinforce the requirements relating to independence, which auditors
must comply with. These are as follows:

Auditors and senior members of their staff who are directly involved in the
management, supervision or delivery of PSAA audit work should not take part in
political activity.

No member or employee of the firm should accept or hold an appointment as a
member of an audited body whose auditor is, or is proposed to be, from the same
firm. In addition, no member or employee of the firm should accept or hold such
appointments at related bodies, such as those linked to the audited body through a
strategic partnership.

1718/AFL/LCC 7

Document Classification - KPMG Confidential



Page 24

KPMG LLP
Annual audit fee 2017/18
21 April 2017

Audit staff are expected not to accept appointments as Governors at certain types of
schools within a local authority area.

Auditors and their staff should not be employed in any capacity (whether paid or
unpaid) by an audited body or other organisation providing services to an audited
body whilst being employed by the firm.

Auditors appointed by the PSAA should not accept engagements which involve
commenting on the performance of other PSAA auditors on PSAA work without first
consulting PSAA.

Auditors are expected to comply with the Terms of Appointment policy for the
Engagement Lead to be changed on a periodic basis.

Certain other staff changes or appointments require positive action to be taken by
Firms as set out in the Terms of Appointment.

Confirmation statement
We confirm that as of April 2017 in our professional judgement, KPMG LLP is

independent within the meaning of regulatory and professional requirements and the
objectivity of the Engagement Lead and audit team is not impaired.

1718/AFL/LCC 8

Document Classification - KPMG Confidential



Page 25 Agenda Item 8

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Internal Audit Management
- Collaboration with Wyre Borough Council

28 June 2017

Report of Chief Officer (Resources)

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To receive endorsement to the arrangements regarding the Internal Audit and Assurance
Manager role as a 12 month pilot.

This report is public

RECOMMENDATIONS

Q) That the Committee endorses the 12-month pilot collaboration
arrangement with Wyre Borough Council, to cover the Internal Audit and
Assurance Manager (IAAM) role and to develop the Internal Audit function
and team as set out in the report.

2) That future proposals (beyond the pilot) be considered by the Committee
in due course, and in the meantime the Committee be informed of any
significant changes or developments as the pilot progresses.

1.0 Introduction

1.1 The Council’s constitution (Part 3, Responsibility for Functions, Section 8)
refers to the Audit Committee having responsibility for overseeing the internal
audit function, in particular evaluating the effectiveness of internal audit and the
use of audit resources.

1.2 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 state that a relevant authority must
ensure that it has a sound system of internal control. In order to achieve this,
professional standards for internal audit in local government! must be applied.
One of the standards refers to the “Head of Audit” role holding a professional
qualification and being suitably qualified.

1.3 In the lead up to the retirement of the IAAM on the 19 May 2017, consideration
was given to two main options for future arrangements, these being straight
recruitment or some form of collaboration with neighbouring authorities.

1.4  The departure of the former manager unavoidably resulted in the loss of many
years’ knowledge and experience. Internal audit, and particularly local authority

1 Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and Local Government Application Note
(LGAN) (CIPFA 2013)



15

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

Page 26

internal audit, is a small-scale, specialist activity and this is reflected in the local
employment market and indeed that for the wider area. From discussions with
other local authorities and consultancy providers, expectations were that
recruitment to a new full-time manager post would prove very difficult.
Furthermore, other staff members within the existing team do not currently have
the combination of qualifications and experience to fulfil the role and clearly this
has a major bearing on in-house promotion prospects, at least for now.

With regard to collaboration opportunities, discussions were held with other
local authorities in the county earlier this year. From the discussions it became
clear that only Wyre Borough Council was in a position to consider
collaboration. Fortuitously, it has a similar audit approach and culture to the
City Council — this is an important factor in considering the likely success of any
partnership.

Proposal Details

From the discussions, a collaboration arrangement has been agreed as a pilot
for 12 months, subject to the endorsement of the Committee. The arrangement
is designed to ensure stability and resilience of the audit service, whilst allowing
time and flexibility to review current structures and develop internal audit staff.
The pilot also allows both authorities to learn from the experience and share
best practice. It gives flexibility in the event that for whatever reason, the pilot
does not meet the council’s needs. Both parties have been up front and open
on this point.

Importantly for the City Council, the arrangements draws on the experience of
Wyre’s existing Internal Audit management. This has allowed the Council
immediate cover for the role of IAAM and it is intended to continue to use that
job title going forward. The interim IAAM is a fully qualified Chartered Internal
Auditor (CIA) with over 16 years of internal audit experience; 8 of which have
been served as the Head of Audit at Wyre Council. She also holds a
Qualification in Internal Audit Leadership (QIAL).

The basic terms of the proposal are that the interim IAAM will spend 55 days
on site on average (1 day a week), although this will be front-loaded initially in
order that the Manager can establish her role and effective working
relationships within the City Council. In addition, she will be available for the
remaining time for unlimited advice and guidance whilst based at Wyre Council.
This is to ensure that staff within the audit team are fully supported enabling the
smooth day-to-day operation of the service.

It is envisaged that the interim arrangements will be in place until May 2018,
however there will be a further option to extend this arrangement if
desired/required. During the interim arrangements, the interim IAAM will work
with the team to build resilience, ensuring that the Audit Committee and the
organisation can continue to place reliance on the Internal Audit Service,
maintaining its profile and reputation. This will involve developing the skills and
roles of the other audit team members, including the managerial aspects of the
Principal Auditor role. The establishment of an apprenticeship will also be
pursued.

It is highlighted that the arrangements are solely focused on the provision of
sufficient Officer capacity to ensure an effective audit function. They do not
involve any Joint Committee or other proposals; the two authorities’ governance
and democratic arrangements will remain completely separate.



Page 27

3.0 Details of Consultation

3.1 No specific consultation has been undertaken in compiling this report.
Consultation with relevant authorities was undertaken beforehand, in
developing the proposals, and audit staff have been fully engaged in the
process.

4.0 Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment)

4.1 No alternative options are considered appropriate at this time, given the
suitability of the arrangements that have been developed. In addition, the
flexibility allows changes to be made to the structure should the need arise.
There is a need for the Committee to be kept abreast of future developments,
however, and this is reflected within the recommendations.

5.0 Conclusion

51 Endorsing the proposals will ensure the Internal Audit Service continues to
deliver an effective audit service which complies with the relevant professional
standards. The proposals are designed to support the delivery of the Audit
Plan, as outlined elsewhere on the agenda.

5.2 The interim IAAM will work with the Chief Officer (Resources) to embed a
structure which will provide stability, increase resilience and retain its well-
developed respect and standing throughout the organisation.

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT

(including Health & Safety, Equality & Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety,
Sustainability and Rural Proofing):

None directly arising.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
Legal Services have been consulted. A legal agreement backs the collaborative

arrangements and this will be completed following the Committee’s consideration of this
matter.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no direct/quantifiable financial implications arising at this time. The estimated basic
charge for the collaboration is around £20,600 but if the Council’s needs increase, then the
charge would be varied accordingly. In addition the roles of the other team members will be
reviewed and updated on a temporary basis, with any honoraria being determined in
accordance with Council policy. There may well be a net saving overall when compared with
the budgeted cost for the full-time post of IAAM, but this cannot yet be confirmed.

In considering future arrangements, a cost-benefit appraisal will be undertaken to inform
decision-making.

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS, such as Human Resources, Information Services,
Property, Open Spaces:

As referred to in the report.




Page 28

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The s151 Officer has contributed to this report, which is in her name (as s151 Officer).

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Nadine Muschamp
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards
Telephone: 01524 582117
Local Government application note for the UK
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards E-mail: nmuschamp@lancaster.gov.uk

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 Ref:



mailto:nmuschamp@lancaster.gov.uk

Page 29 Agenda Item 9

AUDIT COMMITTEE

28 June 2017

Annual Review of Internal Audit’s Compliance with
Professional Standards

Report of Internal Audit & Assurance Manager

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To advise Members of the outcome from a self-assessment review against Public Sector
Internal Audit standards as a contribution to the annual review of Internal Audit effectiveness,
and to seek endorsement for an updated Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme

This report is public

RECOMMENDATIONS

(1) That the Internal Audit and Assurance Manager’s (IAAM) conclusions from the
self-assessment exercises are accepted as evidence that Internal Audit is
operating effectively and the Committee can therefore place reliance on
Internal Audit’s reports and work when considering the overall effectiveness of
the Council’s governance arrangements. The areas of partial compliance and
agreed action is presented at Appendix A.

{2) That the Internal Audit Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP)
for 2016/17, presented at Appendix B is noted and endorsed.

1.0 Background

1.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 include a requirement that local authorities
Internal Audit functions take into account public sector internal auditing standards.
These standards are those set out in the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards
(PSIAS) and the associated Local Government Application Note (LGAN) (CIPFA
2013).

1.2 The PSIAS require the IAAM to maintain a QAIP which includes periodical internal and
external assessments of compliance with the Standards. Furthermore, standard 1322
of the PSIAS requires the council to consider disclosing any significant deviations in its
Annual Governance Statement (AGS).

2.0 Report

2.1 Compliance with the PSIAS and LGAN

2.1.1  Areport was presented to the Audit Committee on 29 June 2016 setting out the most
recent results from an initial self-assessment against the 334 lines included in the
PSIAS/LGAN. At that point, the exercise identified 317 points where compliance was
achieved (or which were not applicable to our situation). Partial compliance was
identified in 17 instances and there were no areas of non-compliance.




2.1.3

2.2
2.2.1

222

2.2.3

2.3
2.3.1

2.3.2

2.4
2.41

Page 30

A further annual self-assessment has now been undertaken in accordance with the
QAIP, with the following outcomes:

a) Of the 334 lines in the PSIAS/LGAN, compliance is achieved (or is not
applicable to our situation) in 318 instances (previously 317);

b) Partial compliance is now demonstrated in 16 instances (previously 17),
reflecting the position that action is ongoing to review arrangements in a
number of areas. '

C) There are no areas where non-compliance has been identified.

Appendix A sets out an update on those areas assessed as falling short of full
compliance in the review of the PSIAS and a revised action plan.

Summary

The annual review of Internal Audit's compliance with professional standards is used
to inform the Audit Committee’s consideration of the IAAM's Annual Report (presented
elsewhere on this agenda).and ultimately the annual governance review and the
contents of the AGS (to be considered at the September meeting).

From the information presented in this report, it is felt that the Audit Committee can
take reasonable assurance that Internal Audit is operating effectively and can place
reliance on its reports and work in considering the overall effectiveness of governance
arrangements. No significant deviations from the standards, or other issues regarding
effectiveness, have been identified which would warrant disclosure in the AGS.

Areas of partial compliance have been identified where further work is required to reach
full compliance, namely:

a) the introduction of internal audit performance targets;

b) continue fo develop a fully risk based audit plan;

C) strengthening the council’s risk management framework; and
d) mapping other streams of assurance that may be used to form

the overall audit opinion.
An action plan has been formulated of the areas of partial compliance and these will
be reviewed / addressed during the year.
External Reviews

The Standards require each Internal Audit service to undergo an independent external
review against the standards at least once every five years. Lancaster’s scheduled
involvement in the agreed peer review programme arranged through the Lancashire
District Councils’ Chief Auditors Group is as follows:

a) July 2017 - Review of Allerdale BC by Lancaster CC and Whyre BC
b) November 2017 - Review of Lancaster CC by Wyre BC and Allerdale BC
c) March 2018 — Review of Wyre BC by Lancaster CC and Allerdale BC

The self-assessment referred to in paragraph 2.1.2 will be used as the basis of the
peer review team’s external assessment and the results of the external assessment
will be reported to the Audit Committee in due course.

Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP)

The QAIP draws together those practices which have been established to deliver
quality and continuous review and improvement in internal audit work.




Page 31

2.4.2 The current version of the QAIP, endorsed by the Committee in June 2016, has been
updated to reflect the progress made in agreeing arrangements for external
assessments and the 2017/18 document is presented as Appendix B. Members are
again asked to consider, comment on and endorse this document.

3.0  Details of Consultation
3.1 None specifically undertaken.

4.0 Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment)

4.1 In terms of the review of Internal Audit’s effectiveness, the options available to the
Committee are to:

a. Accept the results of the self-assessment against the PSIAS/LGAN and the
overall conclusion presented in paragraph 2.2.2; or

b. Adopt an alternative view to that presented in the report.

42  Option a) is the preferred option. This will inform the Audit Committee in its
consideration of the annual governance review (to be considered at the September
meeting).

5.0 Conclusion

5.1 The requirement for an annual review of the internal audit's compliance with
professional standards is at present primarily informed by self-assessment reviews
undertaken by officers. The results of these reviews provide elected members with
information to inform their consideration of both Internal Audit's effectiveness and the
Council’s overall governance arrangements and AGS. -

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural
Proofing)

Not applicable

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Joanne Billington

. . Telephone: 01524 582028
I(:’;SbII/;:S)Sector Internal - Audit  Standards E-mail: jbillington@lancaster.gov.uk

Ref: aud/comm/audit/170614|AReview

Local Government Application Note for the
UK PSIAS - (CIPFA, in collaboration with the |
Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors)




Page 32




Majaq ‘JawaebeLEy Ns1y
- 0212 UOI99S Ul SUCKOR PUE SjUSIULIOD 998

ayepdn yse] woly afueyo o

ensed

Zpleog aul pue juswabeuew touss Aq palsanbal
10 P3IP9SU SISPBW S0 PUR S3NsS| aouBwSAcE 'sysU pngy Bupnipu 'senss
loauea pue saunsodxe ysy jueayubis apnpw osie Suguedas opopad auyy ssog

s pdeog 3yl pug juawadeueln oluss. 01 3uiloday. 090z |-

JeBeuepy saurinssy

‘sBuigsw psippayos
Alzpdeoidde s renbar Bulysigess

¢Suesd JIpne aagoedsal JIay) €)1BUIRIO0D PUB LIO JINSU0S

L10B/60/0E -l 0} uanib aq [ uoheBpISUCD 2jepdn jse| woy afugys oy [ejHed NYDT
B LPNY [ELUlL| DI WO WES JIDNE [ELISIXE MoU 0} aagejussaldes ypne [ewaxe nﬂmgsoc. 2y yim Apeinbiad 1aaLl 2y syl se0g
e pajujodde usaq Ausnas sey LounoD sy |
(mo)aq Juswabieusus 5 dd 5
451 ~ 0 | g UoHI=s OS[E S98} JuawWaBsLziy : £B0URINSSE JO $30.n0s Jayo Buisn o3 yorosdde au SuiuuEiap
Y8l pue aouewoued pue Buiuued siepdn jsef Liay SBUBUR ON |ERdEd pue Suifjnusp) jo ped 52 osiisxd Buiddew souBInsse UR N0 paiies yo ay sey| N2
JaBruey souRNssy | eopuss pus aiBaiens dojeasp o) swwesboid
gLoz/e0/Ie 9 PNy [RUa| 2y spisfiuc|e puemio; usye; Buiaq s|
IOMIWEL] SOUBINSSY Ue j0 Juswdogaag £820.n0s asou) uodn asuzljas soeld o) painbal 3q AEW 1B} YoM AUB pUB
‘DAUELTT 3G UBD SUBINESE JApIM a1epdn 1se| way sbueya o [BAEd aOURINSSE J0 $a2un0s Jayio Guisn o) yoroldde su; apnjour ueld paseqg-ysy ay) sa0g
BaIum up sAeMm o3 usnS aq [ UopeapisUoD
o - UORBUIRIO0D 50T
. “uopsod maj
™ 4 ) salizye aouBmssy Mrww“wuwﬂ%cwwm%“”w“w WcMmmhmomucwE Alannefal B Woy 1L2)s $IUSULISSISSE Spasy eIEg £DISE9SSE Uaaq
(0] LozieaiLe 2 IpNY [BLUSIY] A pol :mag osEa- M_._ 390 ad m«., nom..,ws IPNE JBY) SUBaW SUN0S UOHRLLICIL Y31 I 2ABY SHaWaNNbal asinosal sypne |2ws)ul Moy Ueidxe ueld paseqisu oy 5960
O. 1d peseq-4sll ad Jo Ved 8.3 dosasg gesodion aasusysIdwon e o enussqe ay
a S A e e T I T S T - JUBUIDFRU BIAL 824N053Y 00T
P Jsbeusyy soueinssy safloyd JouewaEes B ajelodioay 0] i d
g10%/e0rle 9 wnnY el MOYLIIBLM 3) LM 3] 1M UGHRISPISUOD s1epdn jse) wol efiueys oy BIHed Som ipne jo saoad as0y; jo sshucud aagoadsay (g
18y} N0 1as uerd peseq-ysl al) seaq]  NwoOA
‘sued [enuue pue oifislegs
w1 81mny 8w Ul slesododdisunisnipuos
glogele | “PDCUBN Sdueinssy Aue sprjou] “paugap/padorsaap aepdn sel Wy sBuelo oN|  [eied £xiomalies

B UPNY [ELWstu]

1BYMN; 8q U HIOMUIERY
B0URINSSE 3L} MOU/IAUIB UM JBpISUOD

BouBINSSE $UONESIURBIC AU JUN0IOE OJu] SXE] Ueld pesEg-ysy Bl $907]

ﬁwﬁ ﬁ& \M,

2L02/80/1E

sebeuspy ssusInssy
P PNy [eLuily

PIRIUWOY HpnY o) pajuasald
3q 0} Buojuow daueLiiousd smny.do))
suondo pue uebe pamaine: ag 0} LSHERIS

epepdn jse| Wol 25uByo oN

LMsWssIBe |sAB| 801u8s AUB U] papriaul
pUE saiped ajeudordde upm uoneynsues u) padojpnsp siefie) sousulopsd sy ey

mc.ccw"m a.SN

Nyl

ajepdn 1se| wouy afueys oN

ferueg

¢s1efiel
souenLopad aasusyaldwes apnisul Buoyuow ssuewsoped Bulofue saog

NY31

v Xipuaddy

mMcmEmmumwd. _mchwn:_ TIET|:

£10Z Re ‘ueld uonoy pue sjepdf JUSLISSISSY-JI9S SYIS - HPNY |ewsiu



Page 34

JsBeuBy BJUBINSSY

‘peruswsidw s) Alisjens juswaleuew
ysu 2elodion jsiesp e se uodsy

810Z/e0N1e B ypny R |ENUUY | SY Ul IOMBWIEIL I0U02 PUE
3SU 2U3 0} SaDUalaE) JO a5 1) dojansg
“Jiomsiley soueinsse sjzlodion
Jsfeue soueInss B 10 JUsWyslige}ss a M aU Ul poda
9102/80/18 N i 10 JUawyshgelss ay yy I Ul Hoday

B HRAY [BLIA|

[BNUUY V| 3} U] SOUBINSSE 4O SI0UINOS
1BUJ0 0] S30UBIRRL0 25N Ay doRARg

sug|d
renuue pue fifaiEns v xeu ay; Budojsasp
Ul PRIBPISUOD 3 [Iim $8Nss] a591] 'Sieak

wenal v ebueys [puopesiuebio jo Jusixe ay)
Ag papedw) are ease sy} U sjuawdo@asg

suciude
[eed {II3A0 S} 10} SISEQ B SB PISN BUSILD JSUJ0 JO JIOMBLUIES [oJUoa 10 ¥su ayl,  (p
|erped Lssapiacid souRInsse

Jae uo aoud sy Bulprau swalold pelerad g jo uohelapisuca syl (3

m;.soH_o.H m_._y @Emn_ LOEIIUNLIWIOD 24) S80Q

B %W%ﬁ

)

uoidQ __Ee.o cm«m :

soueWRAoB || 1o Butonsod Jusuno sy

: %mﬁﬁ %@ m%%ﬁ%%g%%w%%
sangiqsuodsal e 1o Aues
“sjuawabusle |e1ed O} pIROY Ay pUE Juawebeuel Hels oy Bulgeus sy ‘uonesiuelilo ayi ssae
MU Ul PAPPIYIR PUB PRISPISUO AN St Jsuuew AL B U pEESIUNWILOD puE paimdes sj usjeulioju 3su ueasisy  (p
jusLeBeuRu YsH e} aINSUS 0] ABssasaU -sueid -
51 §9800.d SIU L JUSWAAI0ALN DUB UOIUSTY ! [ErLEd ¢@jpadde ysy
e SOURINSSY lenuue pug aifsieds y| xau ey mc_ac”w\;mm k s,uoiesiuebio a4; yum sysu ublle 1oy pelrs|es aug sesuodsad ¥su ajeudalddy (3
pue Buuerd asjaes pue aibsjzs ' %q paoedus “._mM mm._m s u s Wmﬁawxm_;mﬁ
uzifuags pue uysayal o) swwesboud q et : Ui Ul =) 1#a=q

ajzl0cion g apiBsuoje padojansp |e1HEd £PUSSPSSE PUR DSLNUSD sl sysl Juesnlubls (g

Bujaq pue manss Japun st ABaieas

Juswabeuew Nsy a1Es0dIoD §,|0UNCD Ay,
124 Bujunuisiap Aq sassed0id Juswabeusw
v_wc 5, co_umm_cmm._o mE E wmmcm>=omtm mE uﬂm:_m._a > 198 JIpNE [BUISI) AU SeH

" JuawIFeue|Al HsI 02T |
ocm |d paSEqSU aU) BUidaeAap
ayepdn is2| Wois sfueys oN |eled uaym uopesiueiio auy Jo asuewasch ABCIOUUDS) UCHEULICM PUB SDIUIS 9] 5Se55B|  NVD]
NGz pUB SIBAIENS Y] 10 PURCH Fxmwccmwrm o1 paanbal yom 10 Junowe auy jo Ajjeuopodold ayl pauspISued v al seH
Jafieuery ouBIngs! -

8102/80/1€ 2 %ﬁ\ W) ¥ | Budopasp wiBl L0} pue (s3n059)00

AU} UYIM LONEINSUOD Ul PIMBIADL BT [IM ajendn 188 Wol SBUBYS ON lereg tsaanoalqo pue ssibeess sucnesiuelic au) syoddns ssuewanof Afojouyoa)

UONRWAOM S,uonesIUeBIO 3Ul JBYlBUM PasSessE AIAICE JIPNE (UL 3U} seH

 usym Ad

v Xipuaddy

woym Ag

R R R

- paunbay uouoy

L10Z >m_>_ mumﬁﬁ_:

. JUBLUSSBSSY

muﬁEu:oG cﬂ._N

2102 Aegj ‘uelg uonoy pue sjepd() JUSWSSISSYH3S SYISd - PNy Jewsiu



Page 35

Appendix B

Internal Audit Quality Assurance &
Improvement Programme (QAIP) 2017/18

Introduction

Internal Audit's Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP) is
designed to provide reasonable assurance to the various stakeholders of
Lancaster City Council that Internal Audit;

« Performs its work in accordance with its Charter, which is consistent with
the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and asscciated Local
Government Application Note (LGAN), Definition of Internal Auditing and
the Code of Ethics;

+ Operates in an efficient and effective manner; and
* |s adding value and continually improving Internal Audit's operationé.

The Internal Audit and Assurance Manager is ultimately responsible for the QAIP,
which covers all types of Internal Audit activities. In accordance with the PSIAS,
the QAIP makes provision for both internal and external assessments. Internal
assessments are both ongoing and periodical and external assessments must be
undertaken at least once every five years.

Internal Assessment

Internal Assessment is made up of both on-going reviews and periodic reviews.

On-going Reviews
On-going review is maintained through:

* Audit policies and procedures used for each engagement including the
Internal Audit Manual to ensure compliance with applicable planning,
fieldwork and reporting standards;

* Assignments managed and recorded using the established electronic
Audit Management System;

* An appropriate level of supervision of all engagements;
+  Weekly feam update meetings on progress with assignments;
+ Regular, documented review of work papers during engagements.

» Seeking and reviewing post-completion feedback from audit clients for
individual audit assignments;

» All draft and final reports and action plans reviewed and approved by the
Internal Audit Manager.

Periodic Reviews

Periodic reviews are designed to assess conformance with Internal Audit's
Charter, the PSIAS/LGAN, Definition of Internal Audit, the Code of Ethics, and
the efficiency and effectiveness of internal audit in meeting the needs of the
Council and its other stakeholders. Periodic reviews will be conducted through:




Page 36

* Monthly one-to-one meetings between each member of the Internal Audit
team and their line manager,

« Activity and performance reporting to each scheduled meeting of the Audit
Committee; and

e Annual self-assessment of conformance with the PSIAS/LGAN.

Any resultant action plans will be monitored by the Internal Audit Manager in line
with the Audit Committee reporting cycle.

External Assessment

External assessments will appraise and express an opinion about Internal Audit
conformance with the PSIAS/LGAN, Definition of Internal Audit and Code of
Ethics and include recommendations for improvement as appropriate.

Ten of the authorities involved in the Lancashire District Chief Auditors Group
have now agreed upon arrangements for a ‘peer review’ process 1o meet this
requirement. A memorandum of understanding has been agreed and signed by
the participating bodies for the ‘Peer Review’ process setting the methodology for
the assessment.

A schedule for assessments has been drawn up and agreed between the
participants. This schedule provides for the external assessment of Lancaster
City Council’s internal audit function to be carried out in October 2017.

Reporting

Internal Assessments: the outcomes and conclusions from internal
assessments will be reported to the Audit Committee on an annual basis;
normally as part of the Internal Audit and Assurance Manager's Annual Report.

External Assessments: the results of external assessments will be reported to
the Audit Committee at the earliest opportunity following receipt of the external
assessor's report. The external assessment report will be accompanied by an
action plan in response to significant findings and recommendations contained in
the report.

Follow Up: the Internal Audit and Assurance Manager will implement
appropriate follow-up actions to ensure that recommendations made in the report
and action plans developed are implemented in a reasonable timeframe.




Page 37 Adgenda Iltem 10

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Internal Audit Annual Report and
Assurance Statement 2016/17

28 June 2017

Report of the Internal Audit and Assurance Manager

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To inform the Committee of the extent and outcome of internal audit work during the 2016/17
financial year and to present an annual statement of assurance regarding the Council’s

framework of governance, risk management and control.

This report is public

RECOMMENDATIONS
1. That the report be noted.
2. That the Internal Audit and Assurance Manager’s (IAAM) assurance statement

and annual internal audit opinion (paragraphs 2.11 to 2.232.22) be accepted and
considered by the Committee in relation to the annual governance review and
Annual Governance Statement (AGS), which is to be considered by the
Committee at the September meeting.

1.0 Introduction

1.1 The terms of reference of the Audit Committee include: To receive the internal audit
annual report and annual controls assurance statement (the Constitution, part 3
section 8, TOR 8.8).

1.2 Professional standards for internal audit in local government! specify that “The chief
audit executive (IAAM) must deliver an annual internal audit opinion and report that
can be used by the organisation to inform its governance statement”, and that “The
annual internal audit opinion must conclude on the overall adequacy and effectiveness
of the organisation’s framework of governance, risk management and control.”

1 Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and Local Government Application Note (LGAN)
(CIPFA 2013)



2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

Page 38

Report
Annual audit plan 2016/17

Internal audit plans and assignments are developed on a risk-based approach, seeking
to identify and devote resources to the areas of greatest significance to the Council.
The 2016/17 internal audit plan was approved by the Audit Committee at its meeting
on 29 June 2016. Adjustments to the plan were approved by the Committee at its
meetings on 14 September 2016 and 18 January 2017.

The annual outturn position against the 2016/17 annual plan is summarised in the
following table.

Resources (days)

Area of work Original plan R?I;gf/f;?n Actuals
Assurance audit

Core financial systems 50 30 12

sReer\\//(iecneuses and benefits shared 40 40 31

Core management arrangements 50 50 58

Risk based assurance audits 120 145 154

Follow-up reviews 50 30 17
Sub-total, assurance work 310 295 272
Advice and support work 90 78 76
Investigations 20 10 7
Audit management 40 40 55
Other duties (non-audit) 55 142 136
General contingency 20 0 0
Total chargeable days 535 565 546
Non-chargeable activities (notel) 100 110 139
Total available days 635 675 685

Note 1. Non-chargeable activities include team meetings, section and service
management, general administration, employee development, regional audit group
meetings, etc.

Explanation of major variances

The summary shows that the number of available days in the year increased by 50,
the main factors behind this being:

. reduced annual leave - 7 days

. reduced sickness - 7 days

. reduced training - 8 days

. use of interim contract staff - 28 days

In consequence, the number of chargeable days delivered was 546 compared with the
original plan 535. As reported during the year, a major issue has been the call on
resources to manage and support the newly created information governance team
included in the table under “other duties (non-audit)”. It was this factor that has led to
the engagement of an interim contactor to help maintain the core programme of audit
work.



Page 39

2.5 The increase in resources devoted to “audit management” reflects recent work
connected with the IAAM’s retirement in May 2017 and establishing succession
arrangements.

2.6 In consequence, 38 fewer days than originally planned were delivered on the core
programme of assurance audit work. Any reduction in core work must inevitably
diminish the assurance that the Committee is able to take from Internal Audit’s output
over the period and this is reflected and commented on in the IAAM’s audit opinion.

Review of the effectiveness of internal audit

2.7 Professional standards expect that an annual review is undertaken of the effectiveness
of internal audit. This process forms part of a Quality Assurance and Improvement
Programme (QAIP) which feeds in to the wider annual review of the effectiveness of
the system of internal control and governance. The conclusions and outcomes from
the most recent internal annual review is reported elsewhere on this agenda.

2.8 The review concludes that the Audit Committee can take reasonable assurance that
internal audit is operating effectively and can place reliance on its reports and work in
considering the overall effectiveness of governance arrangements. No significant
deviations from the standards, or other issues regarding effectiveness, have been
identified which would warrant disclosure in the AGS.

Results of assurance work

2.9 In all cases, completed assurance audits have resulted in the production of a report
and action plan, agreed by managers and submitted for consideration by the Audit
Committee. The assurance system uses four levels of opinion, as follows:

Level of N
Image | Definition
assurance
Maximum % | The Authority can place high levels of reliance on the

arrangements/controls. Best practice is demonstrated
in some or all areas.

Substantial s The Authority can place substantial (i.e. sufficient)
reliance on the arrangements/controls. Only relatively
minor control weaknesses exist.

Limited A The Authority can place only limited reliance on the
arrangements/controls. Significant control issues need
to be resolved.

Minimal A | The Authority cannot place sufficient reliance on the
arrangements/controls. Substantial control weaknesses
exist.

2.10 Thetable in Appendix A sets out the assurance opinions issued from audits and follow-
up reviews completed since 31 March 2016, and any subsequent changes in
assurance level.

Assurance statement

2.11 It must be recognised that internal audit can be expected to provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance that risk is being effectively managed and that control
weaknesses or irregularities do not exist.

2.12 This assurance statement is drawn from both the results of individual internal audit
assignments and the results of follow-up reviews into previously completed audits, as



2.13

2.14

2.15

2.16

2.17

2.18

2.19

Page 40

reflected in the contents of Appendix A. The following table summarises the assurance
opinions covered in the appendix, based on the most recent review, with the previous
year’s totals, for comparison.

Number of audit opinions
Assurance level 2016/17
(most recent review) Financial Governance Other | 2015/16
audits audits audits Tota
Maximum vV 0 0 0 0 1
Substantial v 6 0 3 9 10
Limited A 2 0 5 7 3
Minimal A 0 0 0 0 0
Totals 8 0 8 16 14

Through established procedures, the Audit Committee will continue to receive updates
on progress with those audits which have not reached at least the “substantial’
assurance level. At present this consists of the seven audits listed in Appendix A
whose assurance ratings stand as “limited”.

These procedures for reporting and following up audits and reporting progress to Audit
Committee continue to operate effectively.

Financial systems audits

This relates to eight financial system audits. Assurance levels on the Council’s core
financial systems remain consistently high. Given the work undertaken, it is the IAAM’s
opinion that effective internal controls exist to ensure the accuracy and integrity of the
key financial systems and that no significant unmanaged risks or ongoing control
weaknesses have been identified.

Governance arrangements

No new assurance audit work has been carried out during the year into specific
governance arrangements. The internal audit team has however been heavily involved
in undertaking the annual review of governance arrangements leading up to the
preparation of the AGS. Work has also been undertaken to review the Council’s
arrangements and Local Code of Governance in light of a new governance framework
for local government being introduced in 2016.

There remain a number of outstanding considerations from earlier audit work relating
to the council’s information governance arrangements. These considerations are
being addressed through an ongoing reorganisation of the corporate information
governance function.

In the IAAM’s opinion, at this stage of development, an update on the position
regarding information governance should again be included in the AGS.
Other audits

This section covers eight audits, five of which resulted in a “limited” assurance opinion,
these being in relation to:

o section 106 agreements;

o driver certificates of professional competence; *




Page 41

o stores; *

o safeguarding - adults;*and
o anti-social behaviour.

* Following further progress reviews undertaken since 1 April 2017, the opinion level
for these audits has been raised to ‘substantial’.

2.20 In each instance, work is ongoing to implement the action plans with a view to
achieving progression to ‘substantial’ assurance in the near future. As always,
arrangements are in hand for internal audit to monitor and provide the Audit Committee
with updates on the progress made.

2.21 Inthe IAAM opinion, no unmanaged risks or control weaknesses have been identified
which are so significant as to warrant disclosure in the Council's AGS. Where
weaknesses have been identified, remedial action has been agreed and arrangements
are in place to monitor the implementation of those actions and the level of assurance
provided.

Annual internal audit opinion

2.22 Resourcing issues during 2016/17 and their implications for the provision of assurance
have been mentioned in paragraph 0. Measures taken to manage those issues have
limited the reduction in the amount of internal audit time spent on assurance work to
12% against the original plan.

2.23 The IAAM's opinion is that, whilst this reduction must inevitably lower the level of
assurance that can be derived from internal audit work, this is not so significant as to
invalidate the judgement. Given that internal audit work has not identified significant
issues regarding the council’s framework of governance, risk management and control,
it is the IAAM’s opinion that reasonable assurance can be provided for this particular
period.

3.0 Details of consultation
3.1 No specific consultation has been undertaken in compiling this report.
4.0 Options and options analysis (including risk assessment)

4.1  The proposal is that the Committee accepts the IAAM assurance statement as a
contribution to the overall assessment of the internal control environment and the AGS.
No alternative options are identified.

5.0 Conclusion

5.1 The work of internal audit seeks to provide assurance to the Council as to the
appropriateness and effectiveness of its internal control and corporate governance
arrangements. During the 2016/17 financial year, internal audit's work has provided
reasonable assurance.

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT

(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural
Proofing)

This report has no direct impact on these areas.



Page 42

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

None arising directly from this report.

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

None arising directly from this report.

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Joanne Billington
Internal Audit Plan 2016/17 Telephone: 01524 582028
E-mail: jbillington@lancaster.gov.uk

Ref:




Page 43
Internal Audit - Assurance Opinion Results 2016/17 Appendix A

Financial Audits

15/0966 Sundry Debtors

04-Jul-16 Substantial / Risks associated with sundry debt management are well managed, systems
in place being well controlled. There is scope however to further strengthen
some procedures within Services and actions have been agreed with a view
to achieving this.

16/0971 Council Housing Rent Collection and Arrears Management

14-Nov-16  Substantial ( Overall, risks associated with council housing rent collection and arrears
management are well managed, systems and processes in place being well
controlled and robust. There is scope however to further strengthen
some administrative procedures within Services and a number of low level
actions have been agreed with a view to achieving this.

16/0974 Williamson Park - Cash and Banking

04-Nov-16  Substantial ( Substantial assurance has been provided on the basis that overall, risks are
well managed and systems and procedures in place are robust. There is
scope however to strengthen arrangements through training and reiteration of
established procedure to ensure that transactions are recorded accurately,
and a comprehensive audit trail is maintained. A number of actions have
been agreed with a view to achieving this, some of which were implemented
during the course of the audit.

16/0978 Debt Collection Agency Performance

30-Mar-17  Limited A Limited assurance has been given on the basis that a number of
improvements are required in relation to debt collection procedures,
processes and performance monitoring arrangements across the council.
Arrangements within Council Housing Services require improvement with a
view to ensuring a formal contract/agreement is in place with the debt
collection agent, and data transfer arrangements are secure. Implementation
of the actions agreed following this review should result in substantial
assurance being provided.

16/0981 Fees and Charges - Legal Services

07-Apr-17 Limited A Limited assurance has been given on the basis that legal fees and charges
have not been reviewed since 2010 and current levels of charge cannot be
substantiated. It has been agreed that a comprehensive review of all fees and
charges and charging structures will be carried out with a view to ensuring
that all fees remain appropriate, cover the costs of service provision and can
be appropriately substantiated should they be challenged.

16/0986 Housing Benefits Subsidy Claim - Modified Schemes

10-Feb-17  Substantial ( On completion of the audit fieldwork a limited level of assurance was
awarded on the basis that errors were identified which if left uncorrected
could result in the External Auditors qualifying the 2016/17 Housing Benefit
Subsidy Claim and potential loss of subsidy. During the completion of the
audit the errors identified were rectified and arrangements were strengthened
to ensure the correct treatment of war pensions within the benefits system
going forward, thereby raising the level of assurance to substantial.

16/0988 Housing Benefit Overpayment Classifications

20-Apr-17 Substantial ( Substantial assurance has been given on the basis that no overpayment
misclassifications were identified. Classifications were found to be in line with
DWP guidance and an appropriate audit trail was available to support each
overpayment and the classification awarded.



Page 44

16/0990 Welfare Reforms 1% Rent Reductions

11-Apr-17

Substantial

v

Substantial assurance has been given on the basis that the correct rent
reductions had been applied in relation to all the cases tested during the
course of this review.

Other Audits

15/0965 Section 106 Agreements

22-Aug-16

Limited

A

A limited assurance opinion has been awarded on the basis that although the
majority of systems and controls in place in respect of S106 agreements are
appropriate and are working well, there are concerns surrounding the
effectiveness of current monitoring arrangements. Effective monitoring of
agreed trigger points is fundamental in ensuring that contributions are
received within specified timescales and failure to do so could potentially lead
to contributions not being collected and therefore being returned to
developers. Actions have been agreed to strengthen controls in this area
which should ensure that all income or other agreed provisions due, are
appropriately and promptly identified and received.

16/0972 Driver Certificate of Professional Competence

19-Jul-16

Limited

A

Although Managers are confident that all appropriate drivers have a valid
Driver Certificate of Professional Competence (CPC), a limited assurance
opinion has been given on the basis that this could not be demonstrated due
to the lack of available supporting documentation. Actions have been agreed
to ensure that a comprehensive record of those drivers requiring a valid CPC
in order to carry out their duties is produced, along with a record of those
drivers that currently hold a valid CPC, the expiry dates and a record of all
training that has been undertaken. Thus ensuring that both the council and its
drivers are compliant with legislation and therefore not subject to any financial
penalties.

15/0955 Public Health Funerals

17-May-16

Substantial

v

The assurance opinion has been raised to substantial to reflect the
considerable progress that has been made with implementation of the action
plan resulting from the original audit review. Processes and procedures
surrounding the administration of Public Health Funerals have been
significantly strengthened and appropriate measures have been put into
place to ensure that all avenues of responsibility are explored prior to the
council accepting responsibility for burial arrangements. A comprehensive
audit trail is now in place to support all actions and decisions taken for each
public health funeral the council administers or is involved with.

15/0956 Stores

08-Nov-16

Limited

A

Very good progress has been made with implementation of the agreed
actions, improvements having been made in relation to stocktaking, record
keeping and security checks on stock leaving the depot. However, reviews
are still ongoing in relation to key areas including purchasing, stock
management and ensuring that the most effective use is being made of the
Stores system. Therefore, the level of assurance which can be provided at
this time remains at limited. However, revised target implementation dates
have been agreed to take into account work in progress, which once
complete should result in substantial assurance being provided.

15/0963 Safeguarding Adults

03-Jan-17

Limited

A

Good progress has been made with implementation of the agreed actions,
improvements having been made in relation to the corporate induction
presentation and the information available on the council's intranet and
Website. At the time of producing this report, a number of actions were in the
process of being addressed in relation to some key areas; these include the
revision of the Safeguarding Adults Policy, the launch of the revised



Page 45

safeguarding e-learning modules and a review of safeguarding training needs
across the council. Whilst the level of assurance which can be provided at
this time remains at limited, revised target implementation dates early in 2017
have been agreed to take into account work in progress, which once
complete, will enable the assurance level to be raised.

Other Audits (cont’d)

16/0973 Anti-Social Behaviour (Council Housing)

09-Mar-17

Limited

A

Limited assurance has been given on the basis that there is scope to improve
current arrangements with a view to ensuring the council fully complies with
the requirements of the Anti-Social Behaviour Act, and regulatory standards
set for housing providers. Policies and procedures in place are in need of
review, and plans developed which seek to improve satisfaction levels in
relation to anti-social behaviour need to be implemented. Officers are
currently in the process of implementing actions agreed following this review,
which once complete, should result in substantial assurance being provided.

16/0975 Licensing (Taxis)

14-Dec-16

Substantial

v

Substantial assurance has been provided on the basis that overall, risks are
well managed and systems and procedures in place are robust. There is
scope however to strengthen arrangements through the provision of member
training and the reiteration of established procedures, thus ensuring that all
documentation supporting the issue of a licence is retained on file and a
comprehensive audit trail is maintained. A number of actions have been
agreed with a view to achieving these improvements.

16/0985 BACS Processes

10-Apr-17

Substantial

v

Substantial assurance has been provided on the basis that the vast majority
of controls are operating effectively and addressing risks inherent in the
BACS process. However, there is scope for improvement in regard to the
security, access, storage and retention of BACS files prior and subsequent to
processing for payment / collection. Implementation of the recommendations
would improve the overall opinion and should result in maximum assurance
being provided.




Agenda Iltem 11 Page 46

Internal Audit Strategy and Risk Based Plan 2017/18
28 June 2017

Report of Internal Audit and Assurance Manager

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To seek the Committee’s approval for a proposed Internal Audit Strategy and Annual Risk
Based Plan for 2017/18

This report is public

RECOMMENDATIONS

1. That the Internal Audit Strategy and Risk Based Plan for 2017/18 be approved.

1.0 Introduction

1.1 The terms of reference of the Audit Committee include: “To approve Internal Audit
strategic plans and the Annual Internal Audit Plan” (the Constitution, part 3 section 8,
TOR 11).

1.2 Professional standards for Internal Audit in local government! specify that “The Chief
Audit Executive (the Internal Audit and Assurance Manager) must establish risk-based
plans to determine the priorities of the internal audit activity, consistent with the
organisation’s goals.”

1.3 The standards also specify that “The risk-based plan must take into account the
requirement to produce an annual internal audit opinion and the assurance framework.
It must incorporate or be linked to a strategic or high-level statement of how the internal
audit service will be delivered and developed in accordance with the internal audit
charter and how it links to the organisational objectives and priorities.”

1 Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and Local Government Application Note (LGAN)
(CIPFA 2013)



2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

2.5

2.6

2.7

3.0

3.1

4.0

4.1

4.2

5.0

51

Proposal Details Page 47

Internal Audit Strategy

In accordance with the standards, an internal audit strategy has been incorporated in
the risk based plan. Both documents are attached to this report at appendices A and
B.

As the organisation reviews its priorities and continues to respond to continuing
financial pressures and political uncertainties, there is an ongoing need to ensure that
standards of risk, governance and internal control in the organisation are maintained.
Internal audit’s strategy aims both to promote these standards and develop the level
and quality of independent assurance provided to the organisation on the effectiveness
of its arrangements.

Risk Based Plan 2017/18

The draft risk based plan submitted at Appendix B takes account of the characteristics
and relative risks of the council’s activities. Unlike previous years, this year’s plan is
more specific, to allow the internal audit team to plan their work more efficiently.
However, it is important to note that the plan is flexible and should any new risks
materialise, consideration will be given to making changes to this plan. The Audit
Committee will be informed of any changes made in the future to the approved risk
based plan.

It is anticipated that the adoption of a revised corporate risk management strategy and
the development of assurance mapping for each service will in the future enable a re-
focus of internal audit objectives and an associated re-design of the risk based plan.
Developments in these areas and the implications for internal audit will be reported to
the Audit Committee in due course.

Following the retirement of the former Internal Audit and Assurance Manager (IAAM)
on the 19 May 2017, interim arrangements have been put in place with Wyre Borough
Council, providing temporary cover for the senior management responsibilities of the
IAAM’s post.

The risk based plan for 2017/18 is based on estimated available resources of 485 days,
this being delivered by the in-house team plus the input of the interim IAAM from the
22 May 2017.

Financial Considerations

The risk based plan for 2017/18 is expected to be delivered within the overall 2017/18
budget for the internal audit and assurance service.

Details of Consultation

Management Team has been consulted in the preparation of this report. Management
Team, statutory officers and senior managers have been consulted in the preparation
of internal audit’s risk based audit plan for 2017/18.

Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment)

Members are invited to comment on and then approve the proposed risk based plan
for 2017/18.

There are no alternative options identified.

Conclusion

Audit strategy and planning are key elements in the provision of an effective internal
audit service. The proposed risk-based plan seeks to maintain a firm platform for the
ongoing effectiveness and improvement of the council’s internal audit service.



Page 48

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural
Proofing)

This report has no direct impact on these areas.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The annual risk based plan for 2017/18 is expected to be delivered within the overall 2017/18
budget for the internal audit and assurance service.

There are no further financial implications arising from the report at this point.

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

None arising from this report

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Joanne Billington
Telephone: 01524 582028

E-mail: jbillington@lancaster.gov.uk

Ref:



Page 49 _
Appendix A

Internal Audit Strategy

2.0
2.1

3.0

3.1

4.0

4.1

Internal Audit Strategy

This strategy is the high level statement of how the internal audit service will be
developed and delivered in accordance with its approved terms of reference (the
Audit Charter) and how it links to the council’s organisational objectives and
priorities.

Service Purpose
The key purposes of the internal audit service are to:

e provide the council* with independent assurance regarding the effectiveness
of its systems of risk, governance and internal control;

e support the council in delivering organisational change and its development
programme; and

¢ help the council secure and demonstrate value for money throughout its
activities.

* This purpose also relates to Preston City Council with regards to the audit by
Lancaster’s internal audit of the revenues and benefits shared service arrangements.

Strategic Aims & Objectives

Internal audit’s strategic aims and objectives are defined as:

e promoting and helping develop standards of risk management throughout the
council’s operations;

e contributing to improving standards of internal control and governance within
the authority and its key partnerships;

e developing the corporate ‘assurance framework’ and coordinating the capture
and reporting of sources of assurance;

¢ developing and supporting managers in the management of risk;

e working closely with the corporate enquiry team to develop programmes of
work to combat and reduce the risk of fraud;

e supporting the council in identifying efficiencies and achieving value for
money in service delivery; and

e continuing to develop the scope, robustness and effectiveness of internal
audit’s assurance work.

Identifying and accommodating significant local and national issues and risks

Emerging local and national issues that might warrant internal audit attention will
primarily be identified through:

e contributing to the development, updating and monitoring of the assurance
framework;

e reviewing the corporate plan and individual service plans; and

e regular consultation and liaison with Chief Officers, the statutory officers,
service managers and the Corporate Management Team.



4.2

4.3

4.4

Page 50

This approach will seek to ensure that significant risks are adequately identified,
assessed and evaluated in terms of the level of assurance necessary and already
available, and will involve:

tracking corporate policy/priority developments and the decisions taken by the
authority’s decision-making bodies;

regular consultation with service managers, the Corporate Management Team
and the Audit Committee Chairman;

regular liaison with other review bodies, especially the Council’s external
auditor;

liaison with/considering the approach and work programmes of other internal
review bodies, for example the Overview and Scrutiny function;

liaison with other local government auditors and active participation in
local/regional professional groups;

consideration of key corporate risks; and

maintaining a professional focus and taking advantage of opportunities for
professional updates/development, including continuous professional
development where appropriate.

In line with the Council’s developing risk management strategy and associated
assurance framework, the risk-based audit plan seeks to provide assurance in areas
of significant risk where alternative sources of assurance are not readily available.
Typically this will tend to focus on the auditing of “underlying risks”, being those risks
which are not being addressed by a current corporate or service-based project or
initiative. The plan will be reviewed and updated on a rolling basis to accommodate
any emerging significant risks and assurance needs identified through an ongoing
review of the assurance framework.

Internal audit activity may involve any one, or a combination of the following:

a specific piece of internal audit assurance work;

efficiency/VFM or support work directed at improving the efficiency of existing
procedures and/or standards of governance and control;

contributing to corporate groups/projects/reviews (officer and/or Member
based) established for a given purpose/objective.



Page 51

: Appendix B
Annual Audit Plan - 2017/ 18
Audit and Interim Audit and
: Assurance Assurance
Category of Audit Total Days Manager Manager Audit Team
1 April - 19 Ma 22 May onwards x2 FT
Internal audit management 26 6 10 10
Advice and assistance 40 0 0 40
Information Governance Management 12 10 0 2
Corporate Enquiry Team management 2 0
Deputy 151 responsibilities 0 0
HB subsidy claim - Overpayments
1% Rent reductions 5.5 0 0.5 5
Equality Act 3.5 0 0.5 3

Contingency for investigations / whistieblowing 20 | o | o | 2
Follow-up of assurance auits 3% | o | 1 | 35 |

Budgetary control 12 0 0.5 11.5
Income management 12 0 0 5 115
Main accounting 11.5
—
Procurement 0 115
Insurance 12 0 0.5 115
Asset management 12 0 0.5 11.5
Business planning 12 0 0.5 11.5
Contract management 12 0 0.5 11.5
Financial planning and MTFS 10 0 0.5 9.5
Performance management 12 0 0.5 11.5
Recowery of legal fees and court costs 15 0 0.5 145
Compliance to scheme of delegation 12 0 0.5 11.5
Salt Ayre leisure centre 12 0 0.5 11.5
Council housing woids 12 0 0.5 11.5
Local plan 12 0 0.5 11.5
Voluntary faith community sector 10 0 0.5 9.5
Learning and development 14 0 0 5 13.5
Green waste collection 0 115

NNDR - Strategic
Council tax 10
Unified benefit 12
Housing benefit

0.5 9.5
O 5 11 5

oO|0|0|0

Canal corridor north project 0
Annual governance review and statement 7 0 2 5
Risk management and assurance framework 20 0 5 15
PSIAS Review - moderation and preparation for assessment in Q 14.5 0 4.5 10
National Fraud Initiative 2016/17 5 0 0 5
Counter fraud work 0



	Agenda
	6 External Audit Plan 2016/17
	External Audit Plan 2016/17
	Headlines
	�Introduction
	Financial statements audit planning
	Financial statements audit planning (cont.)
	Financial statements audit planning (cont.)
	Financial statements audit planning (cont.)
	Value for money arrangements work
	Value for money arrangements work (cont.)
	Value for money arrangements work (cont.)
	Value for money arrangements work (cont.)
	�Other matters 
	�Appendix 1: Key elements of our financial statements audit approach
	Appendix 2: Audit team
	Appendix 3: Independence and objectivity requirements
	Slide Number 16

	7 External Audit Fee 2017/18
	I am writing to confirm the audit work and fee that we propose for the 2017/18 financial year at Lancaster City Council. Our proposals are based on the risk-based approach to audit planning as set out in the Code of Audit Practice and Public Sector Au...
	Planned audit fee
	The planned audit and certification fees for 2017/18 are shown below, along with a comparison to the prior year’s fee. All fees are exclusive of VAT.
	PSAA has set the 2017/18 scale fees at the same level as for 2015/16 and 2016/17, thereby preserving the 25 per cent reductions in cash terms that were applied to those years which in turn were in addition to the savings of up to 40 per cent in scale ...
	The PSAA has yet to publish its scale fee for the Certification of housing benefit grant claim. We will communicate this to you as soon as the PSAA publishes this information.
	As we have not yet completed our audit for 2016/17 the audit planning process for 2017/18, including the risk assessment, will continue as the year progresses and fees will be reviewed and updated as necessary. We will naturally keep you informed.
	Redistribution of Audit Commission surplus
	PSAA plans, during the course of 2017/18, to make a distribution of surplus funds to principal local government and police bodies. The distribution is made possible by the transfer of an element of the Audit Commission's retained earnings prior to its...
	This distribution will be made directly by PSAA and not via KPMG. Based on current information, PSAA anticipates that the amount of the redistribution is likely to be in the order of 15% of the scale fee.
	Factors affecting audit work for 2017/18
	We plan and deliver our work to fulfil our responsibilities under the Code of Audit Practice (the Code) issued by the National Audit Office (NAO). Under the Code, we tailor our work to reflect local circumstances and our assessment of audit risk. We d...
	Under the Code, we have a responsibility to consider an audited body’s arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources and to do this we will undertake appropriate value for money (VFM) audit work. The 2017/18 fees...
	Certification work
	As well as our work under the Code, we will certify the 2017/18 claim for housing benefit subsidy to the Department for Work & Pensions (DWP).
	The 2017/18 subsidy claim will be the final year for which PSAA will make arrangements for auditors to undertake housing benefit subsidy certification work. After the end of the transitional arrangements and the current audit contracts, PSAA has no le...
	There are no longer any other claims or returns that we are required to certify under the PSAA audit contract. Assurance arrangements for other schemes are a matter for the relevant grant-paying body, and may be the subject of separate fees and tri-pa...
	Assumptions
	The indicative fees are based on a number of assumptions, including that you will provide us with complete and materially accurate financial statements with good quality supporting working papers, within agreed timeframes. It is imperative that you ac...
	In setting the fee at this level, we have assumed that the general level of risk in relation to the audit of the financial statements and certification work is not significantly different from that identified for the current year’s audit. A more detai...
	We expect to issue a number of reports relating to our work over the course of the audit. These are listed at Appendix 2. A statement of our independence is included at Appendix 3.
	The proposed fee excludes any additional work we may agree to undertake at the request of Lancaster City Council. Any such piece of work will be separately discussed and a detailed project specification agreed with you.
	Beyond 2017/18
	The 2017/18 audit will be the last under the current transitional arrangements whereby PSAA is responsible for managing the audit contracts novated to it from the Audit Commission upon its closure in March 2015.
	For audits of the accounts from 2018/19, the provisions of the Local Audit & Accountability Act 2014 in relation to local appointment of auditors take effect. The Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government has specified PSAA as the appoin...
	Our team
	The key members of our audit team for the 2017/18 audit are:
	Quality of service
	We are committed to providing you with a high quality service. If you have any concerns or are dissatisfied with any part of KPMG’s work, in the first instance you should contact me and I will try to resolve your complaint. If you are dissatisfied wit...
	Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited 3rd Floor Local Government House Smith Square London SW1P 3HZ

	8 Internal Audit Management - Collaboration with Wyre Borough Council
	9 Annual Review of Internal Audit's Compliance with Professional Standards
	10 Internal Audit Annual Report and Assurance Statement 2016/17
	11 Internal Audit Strategy and Risk Based Plan 2017/18

